G.D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Bharath Wind Farm Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bharath Wind Farm Limited
{hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2019, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended {“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2019, its
consolidated loss, consolidated total comprehensive loss, its consolidated cash flows and the changes

in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards én
Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
tthics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAFs Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matter included in the Notes to the Ind AS financial statements:

In view of uncertainty of recovery, the company has, w.e.f. October 1, 2018, stopped recognising
interest income on loan of Rs. Rs. 7,639.36 lacs (RO 10.5% p.a.) given to Janati Bio Power Private

Limited.
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Qur opinion has not been modified in respect of the above matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whoie, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated

in our report.

St. | Key Audit Matter Auditors Response
No .
1 Audit of testing of Impairment in the | The audit procedures that were performed

Property, Plant and Equipment has been | were as under:
identified as a Key Audit Matter considering
the materiality involved. ¢ Where the situation so warranted,
we reviewed the adequacy of the
impairment provisions/credit losses
estimated by the Group for its
Property, Plant and Equipment

e We have reviewed the
reascnableness of the projected
revenues, expenses, remaining
useful life of the Windmills and the
net present value of the cash flows
(NPV) of the company and the
discount rate involved. We have also
compared the NPV with the carrying
amaunts of the assets in order to
ascertain  the adequacy of the
provisions.  According to  the
information and explanations given
to us by the management of the
company, we have alsc considered
the long gestation and the pay-back
period involved in the Wind Power
Projects, while estimating the
amount and the timing of the
provisions/credit losses for praperty
plant & Equipment.

We have obtained and reviewed the
reports on the valuation of the
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Windmills which was carried out by
the group by engaging an
Independent Valuer.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Report of the Board of Directors but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of the
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Holding company and the subsidiary and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial contrals, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Holding Company’s and the subsidiary’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Holding
company and/or the subsidiary or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of those companies.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Head Office: Office No. 3, gth I

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3}(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiary
companies which are companies incorporated in india, has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Holding
Company and/or the subsidiary to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
maodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Holding Company
and/or the subsidiary to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Holding Company and the subsidiary to express an opinion on
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the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the

consolidated financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and {ji) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that;

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid

consolidated financial statements.

b. fn our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the group
so far as it appears from our examination of those hooks.

C. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss {including
other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements.
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d. in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 4 of the
Companies {Accounts) Ruies, 2014.

e, On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and of its subsidiaries incorporated in India, none of the directors of the group
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure A” to this report.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no managerial
remuneration was paid by the Holding Company and the remuneration paid by the
subsidiary to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section

197 (16) of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS consolidated financial statements.

ii. The Group, did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiary.

For G.D. Apte & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 100 515W

R CO~
Umesh. S. Abhyankar Sl ‘
Partner o H/ ¥
Membership Number: 113 053 ' ‘
Chennai, April 25, 2019
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‘Annexure A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Bharath Wind Farm Limited — Report on the Internal Financial Cantrols under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

To the Members of Bharath Wind Farm Limited

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Bharath Wind Farm
Limited as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of Bharath Wind Farm Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary which are companies incorporated in india, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting {Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl}. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial cantrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Act.
Auditor’s Respansibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, which are companies incorporated
in india based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with autharisations of management and directors of the company; and
{3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial renorting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate hecause of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company and its subsidiary has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India.

For G. D. Apte & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 100 515W

Umesh. S. Abhyankar B ey
Partner \’5— f-
Membership Mumber: 113 053 ' '
Chennai, April 25, 2019
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BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
CIN:U31101TN2006PLCOGTTBL

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2019

{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Parvticulars Note Asat 31-Mar-2019 Asat31-Mar-2018
No. -
ASSETS
1 |Non -current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 15,045.58 17,688.36
(b} Goodwill on consolidation 6 877.71 B77.71
(¢) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 53.81 53.83
{ii) Loans 8 14,674.98 11,070.44
(iii) Other Financial Assets 9 377.76 1,381.23
(d) Non Current Tax Assets 10 45.06 -
(e) Other Non Current Assets 11 467.78 348,15
31,542.68 31,419.72
2 |Current Assets
(a) Inventories 12 193.39 208.49
{b) Financial Assets i
(i) Trade Receivables 13 1,745.47 1,745.71
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 125.53 245.30
(iii) Others 15 32846 324,52
(€) Other Current Assets 16 55.83 256.27
: 2,448.68 2,780.29
Assets held for sale 17 178.41 -
Total assets 34,169.77 34,200.01
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 [Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 18 7,170.93 7,170.93
{b) Other Equity 19 3,440.85 5/158.14
10,611.78 12,329.07
2 |Liabilities
(I) Non-current Liabilities
fa)} Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 20,166.07 18,170.82
(ii) Orher Financial Liabilities 21 523.83 1,180.56
{b) Provisions 22 56.23 41.09
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 - -
20.746.13 19,392.47
(I Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 68.00
(ii) Tradc Payables 24
>Total outstanding duwes of micro enterprises and small -
enterprises
>Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 90830 753.66
enterprises and small enterprises
(iii} Other Financial Liabilities 25 1,708.64 1,568.21
(b} Provisions 20 6.28 5.69
(¢} Other Curreant Liabilities 27 120.64 150.91
2,811.86 2,478.47
Liabilities directly assoctated with assels held for sale - -
Total equity and liabilities 34,169.77 34,200.01
See acccompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements
In terms of our report attachied For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors
For G.D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firnn Registration Number 100 515W
W R\ LW / - e -
— \ 3
Umesh § Abhyankar R.Kannan K.V. Kasturi
Partier Dircctor Director
DIN: 003606831 DIN: 00892075

Membership Number 113053
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K. Saminatiian P. Srinivasan
Chief Financial Officer Company Sccretary

Place: Chennai Place: Chennai
Datce: 26 April, 2019 Date: 26 April, 2019




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
CIN:U31101TN2006PLC0O61881
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2019
All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless othenwise stated
Particulars Note No. For Year ended
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
1 [Revenue from operations 28 4977.41 6,240.00
2 [|Fair value gain modification of loan 29 182,61 -
3 |Other income 30 1,074.34 1,371.70
4 |Totalrevenne (1+2+3) 6,234.36 7,611.70
5 |Expenses
(a) Employee benefits expense 31 307.32 27593
{(b) Finance costs 32 3,063.06 2,568.00
(c) Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 2,341.74 3,048.42
{d) Other expenses 33 1,465.52 1,393.08
Total expenses 7,177.64 7,285.43
6 |Profit(Loss) before tax (4 - 5) (943.28) 326.27
7 |Tax expense:
(a) Current tax expense 13.59 76.20
(b) Deferred tax ' - -
8 |Profit/(Loss) after tax {or the year (6-7) (956.87) 250.07
9 |Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
-Remeasurement of defined benefit Obligation 13.61 5.52
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be - -
_ |reclassifted to profit or loss
{B) (i) [tems that will be reclassified to profir or loss )
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified -
to profit of loss
Total other Comprehensive Income (a+b) 13.61 5.52
10 (Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (8 (943.26) 255.59
+0)
11 |Earnings per share of Rs. 10/- each (In Rupees)
(a) Basic (1.32) 0.45
{b) Diluted (1.32) 0.45
See acccompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements
In terms of our repert attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For G.D. Apte & Co.
Chartercd Accountants
Firm Registration Number 100 515W
R'{(.W% VI/“ o g
Umesh S Abhyankar R.Kannan IV, Kasturi
Pariner Director Director
Membership Number 113053 DIN: 00366831 DIN: 00892075
s
/ / rP LS""WV%W\
. /
) “K. Saminatifan P. Srinivasan
T Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
N
Y N
Place: Chennai ol Y Place: Chennai
Date: 26 April, 2019 Do NN Date: 26 April, 2019
"‘\‘ /‘/‘




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cashflow for the year ended 31 March, 2019
CIN:U31101TN2006PLC061881
All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Particulars For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
Maich, 2019 March, 2018
A, Cash flow from operating activities ‘
Profit/{Loss) before tax (943.28) 326.27
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,341.74 3,04842
Impairment of assets 21.42 -
Finance costs 3,063.06 2,568.00
Interest income (807.03) (1,018.72)
Reserve arising out of fair valuation of Loans (774.03) (102.74)
Provisions for doubtful receivable 130.44 3.38
Operating Profit/(loss) before working capital/other changes 3,032.32 4,824.61
Changes in working capital/others:
Adjustments for (increase} / decrease in operating assets:
Current
Inventories 15.10 (15.52)
Trade receivables (130.20) 248.20
Other Financial Assets (3.94) (33.15)
Other Current Assets 200.44 (88.10)
Non Current
Other Financial Assets (7.40) (1,024.50)
Other Non-Current Assets (119.63) 2.86
Assets held for sale 106.37 -
Adjustments for increase / {decrease) in operating liabilities:
Current
Trade payables 154.64 (81.19)
(ther financial liabilities 1.37 (0.31)
Provisions 0.59 -
Other Current Liabilities (30.27) -
Non Current
Provisions 28.75 (10.62)
Cash [used in) operations 3,248.14 3,822.28
Net income tax (paid) (568.65) (48.25)
Net cash flow (used in) / from operating activitics (A} 3,139.49 3,774.03
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on fixed assets, including capital work in progress (5.71) (2.90)
and interest capitalised
Proceeds from sale of investments in subsidiaries 0.02
Proceeds from sale of assets 0.55
Loans given to subsidiaries/group companies (Net) (3,604.54) (5.592.59)
Interest received
- Subsidiaries 1,817.90 1,018.72
Net cash flow {used in) investing activities (B) (1,791.78) (4,576.77)
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BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cashflow for the year ended 31 March, 2019
CIN:U31101TN2006PLC0O61881
LAl amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Cash flows items
Repayment of long-term borrowings (Net) - 4,978.64
Banks and [is (1,060.02) -
Related Parties 3,213.51 -
Income tax refund received - 138.80
(Repayment) / Proceeds of other short-term borrowings 68.00 (875.28)
Interest Paidl (3.738.97) (3,293.96)
Net cash flow [rom financing activities (C) (1,517.48) 948.20
Net decrease in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (119.77) 145.46
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 245.30 59.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 125.53 245,30
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance
Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet 125,53 245.30
Add: Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 125.53 245.30
* Comprises:
{a) Cash on hand 0.20 12.75
(b) Balances with banks
(i) In current accounts 125.33 100.67
(ii) In foreign currency accounts - -
(iii) In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 menths] - 131.88
125.53 245.30
See acccompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For G.D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 100 515W
nw ~ N {l oo gk =
Umesh S Abhyankar & R.Kannan K.V, Kasturi
Partner Director Director
Membership Number 113053 DIN: 00366831 DIN: 00892075
£ Y grww’“” il
i [{Samin han P. Srinivasan
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Chennai Place: Chennai
Date: 26 April, 2019 Date: 26 April, 2019
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BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
Statement of Consolldated Changes [n Equity for the year ended 31 March, 2019
{ Alt arnounts are in Indian Rupees in Lokhs unless othenvise stated}

A.Equity Share Capital

Particulars Amount
Balance at 01 aprll, 2017 7,170.93
Issue of Equity shares on preferential allotment basis -
Balance at 31 March, 2018 7,170,93
Change [n equity share capital during the year -
Balance at 31 March, 2019 7,170.93

B. Otlier Equity
Particuilars Rescrves and Surplus Other
conmprehensive
Ind AS . income- .
Capital Reserve 153?*2?1:11::::15 Transltion g::i:::e: Remeasurciment Tatal Equity
Reserve : & of defined

henelits
Balance as at 01 April 2017 1,374.96 10,344.97 - [6,714.64) - 5.005.29
Profit for the Period - - - 250.07 250.07
Fair Value adJustment on early repayment of loan (102.74) - - - (102.74}
Other Comprehensive Income fer the year - - . - 5.52 5.52
Total Comprchensive loss for Lthe year (102.74) - - 250.07 5.52 152.85
Balance as at 31 March 2018 1,272.22 10,344.97 - (6,464.57) 5.52 5,158.14
L.oss for the year - - - {956.07) - (936.87)
Fair value adjustment on repayment of loan [774.03) - - - - (774.03)
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of
Income tax - - - - 13.61 13,61
Tetal Comprehensive loss for the year (774.03) - - (956.87) 13.61 (1,717.29)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 198.19 10,344.97 - [(742144) 19.13 344085

See acccompanylng notes formling part of the Consolldated financlal statenients

In terms of our report attached

For G.D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registratlon Number 100 515W

(Lot

Direclor
DIN: 00366831

Uniesh § Abhyankar
Pariner
Membership Number 113053

L
e ‘{ * Saminatl
4 . ChielFlnancial OlTicer
H 1
ST _
Place: Chennal ol Place: Chiennai

Date: 26 April, 2019 Date: 26 April, 2019

For and on behalf of the Doard of Directors

// o

K.V. i(ashlri
Director
DIN: 00892075

- gr\/v\/V‘%%Vj
<

P. Srinlvasan
Company Secretary




BHARTH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2019

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1.General Information:

BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED ("the Company"}, is a limited company incorporated in India having
its registered office at No. 18/3 Sigapi Achi Building, Rukmani Lakshmipathy Road, Egmore, Chennai -
600 008. The Company is a subsidiary of Orient Green Power Company Limited (OGPL). The Company
is engaged in the business of generation and sale of power using renewable energy sources (fe.,wind)

2.Applicability of new and revised Ind AS

All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) till the financial statements are
authorised have been considered in preparing these financial statements. There are no other Indian
Accounting Standards that have been issued as at 31 March 2019, but were not mandatorily effective

except as stated below:

Recent Indian Accounting Standards Issued but not effective as at 31 March 2019

Ind AS 116, Leases

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate affairs notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace
the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to
a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged
to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure reguirements for
lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.
The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

* Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

* Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of initial application. Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records
the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

» lts carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application,

Or

» An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
_lease payments related to the lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date

of initial application. b £

SHENNAI

//7.'

e N2




Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.

The Company is carrying out the possible impact of Ind AS 116 and will adopt the standard from April
01, 2015, being its effective date.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C,

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination
of taxable profit {or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need
to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of
tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be
considered to compute the most fikely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when
determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition -

i) Full retrospective approach — Under this approack, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively
to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and

ii} Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity
on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April
1, 2019. The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the
cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting

comparatives.
The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in these financial statements.
Amendment to Ind AS 12 — [ncome taxes

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12,
‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in
profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognized those past transactions or events,

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019.
The effect of this amendment would be insignificant in these financial statements of the company.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 -- plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to ind AS 19, ‘Employee
Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

* to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of

Pge s
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* to recognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction
in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognized because of the impact of the asset

ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019.
The effect of this amendment would be insignificant in these financial statements of the company.

3. Significant Accounting Policies:

3.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The
accounting policies as set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these

financial statements.
3.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given

in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at

the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2,
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value.measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

(i} Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liahilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

(ii) Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

(iii) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liahility.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest leve| input that is significant to the entire

measurement.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

'( 2

/ / \/;
L<
CHENNAL b+

<\ /)

A \-‘_‘ /(\ g

T.

/




3.2.1 Basis of Consolidation

This consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and the
entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries and associate of the Company. Control is
achieved by the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

. has ability to use its power to affect its returns

"The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

"When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,

including:

"« the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holding of
the other vote holders;

* Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties, if any;

* rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
from the date the Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the shareholders
of the company and to Non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the shareholders of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is
exposed, or rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

4




The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances are presented to the extent possible, in the
same manner as the Company's separate financial statements except otherwise stated.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by combining the financial statements of
the company and its subsidiaries on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating in full intra-group balances, intra-
group transactions and unrealized profits. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred,

"Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-contrelling

interests having a deficit balance.

Non-controliing interest represents the proportion of income, other comprehensive income and net
assets in subsidiaries that is not attributable to the Company's shareholders. The Company on
transition to Ind AS prospectively from transition date, the shares the amount of losses pertaining to
Non-controlling interest, including for subsidiaries whose networth has been eroded. Also, the
company has decided to absorb prospectively from the transition date, the share of losses pertaining
to subsidiaries operating under Group captive scheme.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In case Group loses control of a subsidiary on its disposal, the difference between the proceeds from
disposal of investments in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of its net assets as on the date of
disposal is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The following is the list of direct and step down subsidiaries of the Company that are consolidated:

S.No. Name of Principal of Country of Relationship Effective
Subsidiary Activity Incorporation Ownership interest
as at
March March
31,2019 | 31,2018
1. Clarioin Wind | Generation and India Subsidiary | 72.35% 72.35%
Farm Private | sale of power
Limited from renewable
energy sources

3.2.2 Business Combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. In this method,
acquirer's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet condition for
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recognition are recognized at their fair values as at the acquisition date. Acquisition related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as ca pital reserve
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Non Controlling Interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation is measured at the non
controlling interests' proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets.

Initially, Non controlling interest is measured at proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree's identifiable net assets.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were

disposed of.

3.2.3 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see note 3.2.1 above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described in note 3.22

below.
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3.3 Inventories

Raw material and Stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis and includes all direct cost incurred in bringing such inventory
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost necessary to make the sales

Due Allowance is made to the carrying amount of inventory based on Management’s
assessment/technical evaluation and past experience of the Company duly taking into account its age,
usability, obsolescence, expected realisable value etc.

3.4 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects

_ of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts

or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The
cash flows are segregated into operating, investing and financing activities .

3.5 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

3.5.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company'’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

3.5.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to he utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability would be settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. T




Deferred tax asset includes Minimum Alternate Tax {(MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in
India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future
income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when
the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with

asset will be realised.
3.5.3 Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

3.5.4 Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax{'MAT") credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the
year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the
provisions contained in the Guidance Note issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI),
the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT
credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the
carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipments are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of fixed assets comprises the purchase price net of any trade discounts and
rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable) and includes
interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is
ready for its intended use and other incidental expenses incurred up to that date. Subsequent
expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only if such expenditure results
in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of

performance,

Property, plant and equipments acquired and put to use for project purpose are capitalised and
depreciation thereon is included in the project cost till the project is ready for its intended use.

Any part or components of property, plant and equipments which or separately identifiable and
expected to have a useful life which is different from that of the main assets are capitalised separately,
based on the technical assessment of the management.

Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress
are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest

Property, plant and equipments retired from active use and held for sale are stated at the lower of
their net book value and net realisable value and are disclosed separately.

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment’s are not

)
yet ready for their intended use and are carried at cost determined as aforesaid. ‘ /--f\-* "-f.‘;jﬁ;
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3.6.1 Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided Pro-rata for the periods of use on the
straight-line method at the rates specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect
of certain assets mentioned below which are provided for the rates based on the estimated useful

lives of the assets, as determined by the management.

Plant and equipment in the nature of electrical equipment including transmission facilities are
depreciated over a period of 21 years considering the nature of the facilities and technical evaluation.
Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 each are depreciated in the year of purchase considering
the type and usage pattern of these assets.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the primary lease period.Depreciation is accelerated
on property, plant and equipment, based on their condition, usability, etc. as per the technical
estimates of the Management, where necessary.

Buildings and Plant and Machinery on land/plant obtained on a lease arrangement are depreciated
over the Term of the arrangement,

3.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight line basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on prospective basis.

An Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use of disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the Statement of profit or loss.

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful life on straight line method.

3.8 Leases

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risk
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All the other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as expenditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis, unless another basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefits received
from the use of the assets taken on lease or the payments of lease rentals are in line with the expected
general inflation compensating the lessor for expected inflationary cost. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.,

Assets held under finance lease are capitalised at the inception of the lease, with corresponding
liability being recognised for the fair value of the leased assets or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the reduction of the lease
liability and finance charges in the statement of Profit or Loss so as to achieve a constant ratf; of
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interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

3.9 Revenue

Effective April 01, 2018, the Company adopted IND AS 115, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'.
Modified retrospective method is adopted during the implementation of the standard. Application of
this standard does not have any impact on the revenue recognition and measurement.

Revenue from Operations- Sale of Power
The Company derives revenue primarily from Sale of power.

Revenue from the sale of power is recognised on the basis of the number of units of power exported,
in accordance with joint meter readings undertaken on a monthly basis by representatives of the State
Electricity Board and the company, at rates agreed upon with customers and when there is no
uncertainty in realising the same. Transmission, System Operating and Wheeling/Other Charges
payable to State Electricity Boards on sale of power is reduced from Revenue.

Revenue from the end of the last invoicing to the reporting date is recognized as unbilled revenue and
are classified as contract assets.

The company accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of
revenue based on the ratable allocation of the discounts/ incentives to each of the underlying -
performance obligation that corresponds to the progress by the customer towards earning the
discount/ incentive.

Other Operating Revenues
a. Revenue from Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Contracts

Revenue from Windmill Operations and Maintenance (0&M) contracts are recognized, where the
performance obligations are satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement
or collectability of consideration and is recognized on prorate basis over the term of the underlying
maintenance arrangement.

b. Renewable Energy Certificate (REC) Income

Income arising from REC is initially recognised in respect of the number of units of power exported at
the minimum expected realisable value, determined based on the rates specified under the relevant
regulations duly considering the entitlements as per the policy, industry specific developments,
Management assessment etc, and when there is no uncertainty in realizing the same. The difference
between the amount recognized initially and the amount realised on sale of such REC's at the Power
Exchange are accounted for as and when such sale happens.

¢. Others

(i) tncome in the form of Generation Based Incentives are accounted for in the year of generation for
eligible units when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

(i} Income from services is recognized upon rendering services, in accordance with the terms of
contract. . o L
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The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of Profit and loss.

Other Income

(i) Dividend from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment is
established and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount can be measured reliably.

(ii} interest income from financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

(iii) Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/expected to be admitted
and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable
to expect ultimate collection.

3.10 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by
employees of the Company, as detailed below:

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to State Governed provident fund scheme, Employee State Insurance
scheme and Employee pension scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and expenses
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the amount of contribution required to
be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are
recognised based on actuarial valuation as on the balance sheet date using the projected unit credit
method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Company accrues for liability towards Gratuity which is a defined benefit plan. The present value
of obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation as at the
balance sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized
in the statement of Other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are not
deferred.

Short Term benefits

Short term employee benefits at the Balance Sheet date, including short term compensated absences,
are recognized as an expense as per the Company's scheme based on expected obligations,gl}._@
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Long term employee benefits

The Company accounts for its liability towards long term compensated absences based on the
actuarial valuation done as at the Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

Government Grants

Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attached to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets and non-monetary grants are recognised and disclosed as
‘deferred income’ as non-current liability in the Balance Sheet and recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over the usefu! lives of the related

assets.

3.11 Foreign Currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of entity are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (), which is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group's presentation currency.

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates.

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise except for:

(ilexchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

Assets and liabilities of entity with functional currency other than presentation currency are translated
to the presentation currency (INR} using closing exchange rates prevailing on the last day of the
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated using average exchange rates for the
neriod. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as "Foreign currency translation reserve'.
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3.12 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs specifically identified to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets is
capitalized as part of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of
time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during
extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

interestincome earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Borrowing costs that
are not directly attributable to a qualifying asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss using

the effective interest method.
3.13 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financiai assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.13.1 Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established hy regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost
{except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition):

¢ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

* the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition): JRNSEES
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« the asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign
currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Amortised cost and Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other
income” line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election {on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining 1o
investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments
through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
» It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

» On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« It is a derivative that is not designated and effective asa hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in
foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets




Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost
and fair value through other comprehensive income.

Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the
financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition. For financial instruments
whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to
twelve months expected credit losses is recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
of the proceeds received.

3.13.2 Financial Liahilities and Equity Instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial Habilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference
between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is
recognised over the term of the horrowings in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if
not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:
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a. the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS
109; and

b. the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

3,13.3 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its
foreign currency risks.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value

is negative.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or

loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCl and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

* Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

+ Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability.

Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

i) Fair value hedges:

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
as finance costs.

The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of
the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is
amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR
amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item
ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. 37
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ii) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCl in the cash
flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit

and loss.

Amounts recognised as OCl are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit
or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised.

3.14 Investment in subsidiaries and associates

The company records the investments in subsidiaries and associates at the cost less impairment loss,
if any.

Interest free loans provided to subsidiary are recognised at fair value on the date of disbursement and
the difference on fair valuation is recognised as deemed investment in subsidiary. Such deemed
investment is added to the carrying amount of investment in subsidiaries. Loans are accounted at
amortized cost method using effective interest rate. If there is an early repayment of loan made by
the subsidiary, the proportionate amount of the deemed investment recognised earlier is adjusted.

3.15 Loans and advances to subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and associates

Interest free loans/loans (extended at interest rates less than the Company's borrowing rate) provided
to subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and associates are recognized at fair value on the date of
disbursement and the difference on fair valuation is recognized as deemed investment in such
subsidiary, fellow subsidiary/ associate. Such deemed investment is added to the carrying amount of
investments, if any, in such subsidiary, fellow subsidiary/associate. Loans are accounted at amortized
cost method using effective interest rate. If there is an early repayment of loan, the proportionate
amount of the deemed investment recognized earlier shall be adjusted.

3.16 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.17 Impairment of assets

At the end of each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. If any such
indication exists the recoverahle amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of
impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
helongs.

The Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.




If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
value amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.18 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the

time value of money is material).

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an
inflow of economic henefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

3,19 Non-Current asset held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such assets. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification as held for sale, and
actions required to complete the plan of sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes
to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified
as held for sale.

3.20 Operating Segment

Operating segments reflect the Company's management structure and the way the financial
information is regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM). The
CODM considers the business from both business and product perspective based on the dominant
source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The
operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for
which operating profit / (loss) amounts are evaluated regularly by the executive Management in
deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been

identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. e
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4.2 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment when events occur or
changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less tnan
its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair
value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which
includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected
future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.

fn assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

At each Balance Sheet date, consideration is given to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment of the carrying amount of the Company’s assets. If any indication exists, estimation is
made for the asset’s recoverable amount, which is the greater of the net selling price and the valuain
use. An impairment loss, if any, is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the

recoverable amount.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, if any, are
recognized in profit or loss section of the statement of profit and loss.

4.3 Application of interpretation for Service Concession Arrangements (SCA)

Management has assessed applicability of Appendix A of Indian Accounting Standards 11: Service
Concession Arrangements for the power purchase agreement which the company has entered into.
In assessing the applicability of SCA, the management has exercised significant judgement in relation
to the underlying ownership of the assets, the attached risks and rewards of ownership, residual
interest and the fact that secondary lease periods are not at nominal lease rentals etc. in conciuding
that the arrangements don’t meet the criteria for recognition as service concession arrangements.

4.4 Determining whether an arrangement contain leases and classification of leases

The Company enters into service / hiring arrangements for various assets / services. The
determination of lease and classification of the service / hiring arrangement as a finance lease or
operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of
ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated certainty
of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, proportion of present
value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the

leased asset.

4.5 Employee Benefits - Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as
standard rates of inflation, medical cost trends, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future
salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the

annual defined benefit expenses

M3 T
i

o

~!

CHEA ;\i'__:




S

by

o

'$95S0] JusULURdII [BLIIEW AUB UI 301551 J0U PIp Judwa3euew a3 Aq paacidde
pue 11adxa [ea1uyas) Juspuadapul ue £4q pa1onpuos Sunsey yong quawsredur 1oj juswdmby pue jueyd Auadold s31 paiset Aueduro) sy, ‘1ead a3 Suning
SION
85°S¥0'ST | 09'S 6E°0 040 SO0 ST66ZFT | 656EL 6T0Z "L UDIE 1e se junowy Surdiie) 1oN
9£'889°LT | 09T 150 860 60°0 ¥O0¥¥e'91T | FTOVL 8T0C ‘T€ Y2IBW 1B SB JUNOW Y SUIALIE) 18N
S¥LF¥SPI 8902 £2°T LS°C 6T°0 T8°ZZS¥%T - 6T0Z'TE QIR JE SE IduUe[eg SuISo)
LS'88Y - ) - - L19°'88% - 9[es .10] pP[aY SE payIssels
dnou3 [esodsip e w1 papnpUl s12558 U0 [esodsi(] '$5a7]
Vi W - - - - VA S v - redwi]/syuaunsnipy 1930 /AIRIpISqns Jo uomudossisq:ppe
YLTVET L0C 820 820 £00 ¥0'6£€T - Jeak a1 Sunnp a81eyd uonesnIoWy /uonensidaq
682,971 . | 19'8T S6°0 62°C Z1°0 76°059'2T - 8T0Z ‘T£ Yd>J1e| JE Sk aduerey
I¥8%0'E [AAY ZE0 0 ¥0°0 1% L%0°E - Teaf ay3 Surnp a51eyd ucnesniowy /uonensidsg
87779 6£781 €90 L8'T 80°0 15°£09°6 - LT0Z T [udy 1e soueleg
uonezniowy /uonenaidag pajemunidy
90r€£65'6Z | 8792 29T LTE ¥Z°0 90°Z78'87 | 6S6EL 6107 TIIEI T£ 1€ Se Junoury SuLL1Ie) sso.1n SuIsor)
S50 - - - - - S50 s{esodsi:ssa]
ceeLs - - - - GEELL - 0 piay se payissen dnoas [esodsip B Ul papnoul $1355Y 1SS
L8 L0°S 910 - £0°0 S¥0 . suonIppy
STT9E0E | ITIT 9%'T LTE 120 96'F65'67 | PI0O¥L 810Z ‘T€ U2BW JE SE Junowre Sul411e) SS019
68'C 8¢ L0070 - - - - SUonIppy
9£'8SEDE | 6E£°8T 6€'T LTE 120 96¥65'67 | ¥T0VL L1027 ‘T [udy Je sy
IUNOWY SUIfLIE) 5019

yuowdmba syuawidimba SOAMIXIY mowdmby | progsa.ag

puejue[d | signduwo) o1 SIaA pue e 1ue - pue
‘fSradoag 3o srmywmy| PUEIUEM pueq SIENOIIEY
el
$I9SSY a[qISueL

1awdmbs pue juerd ‘A1radoay *g
(P3103$ BSIMUDYI0 SSBIUN Sy DT Ul Saadny UDIPU] Ul 31D SIURCWE J[Y )
6102 ‘T€ Y2IeW Papud Iea4 311 10) SIUSWSIEIS [EIDUBULY PIIepI[osuod Jo 1ed FuiuLiof sa10N
JILINIT IWAVd ANIM HIVIVHA




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated}

Note 6: Goodwill on Conselidation

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
Opening Balance 877.71 877.71
Add/(less) :Adjustment during the year - -
Closing Balance 877.71 877.71
Note7 : Investments
Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
Traded and Unquoted
Nature of equity
53.81 53.83
Total 53.81 53.83

Note: The amount of Rs. 53.81 Lakhs ( Previous year Rs. 53.83 Lakhs ) shown as deemed equity in respect of
subsidiaries towards fair value of interest free loan and loan at subsidized interest rates amounting to

Rs.7,035.62 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.5,888.34 Lakhs).

Note 8 : Loans-Non Current

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
{a) Loans Receivables considered good - Secured - -
(b) Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured

Loans and advances to related party 7,035.62 5,888.34
Loans and advances to other entities 7,639.36 5,182.10
(¢) Loans Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
(d) Loans Receivables - credit impaired - -
Less: Impairment - -
Total 14,674.98 11,070.44

Note .8.1 .The expected credit loss and fair value loss consequent to waiver in interest on loan Rs.7,035.62 lakhs
given to Gamma Green Power Private Limited and finance charges income thereon has not been recognised in
the financial statements.Jmpact of the same cannot be ascertained as the tenure of the said loan is yet to be

determined.
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BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019 .

{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 9: Other Financial Assets ( Non Current}

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
(a) Security Deposits 63.44 56.04
(b) Interest Receivable on Loan to Related Parties 314.32 1,325.19
Total 377.76 1,381.23

Note 10: Non-Current Tax Assets

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
(a) Advance Income Tax (net proviosion) 45.06 -
Total 45,06 -

Note 11 : Other Non-Current Assets

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
(a) Capital Advances 303.00 303.00
(b) DSRA Deposit 131.88 -
(c) Unamortized upfront fee 32.90 45.15
Total 467.78 348.15
Note 12 : Inventories (Carried at [ower of cost and Net realizable value})
Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
(a) Stores & Spares 172.23 197.78
(b) Consumables 21.16 10.71
Total 193.39 208.49

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year Rs.309.92 Lakhs (for the year ended 31st March

, 2018-Rs.335.87 Lakhs) Ref.note no:3.6

The Mode of valuation of Inventories has been stated in Note 3.3
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BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 13; Trade receivables (Current)

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - -
(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 1,745.47 1,745.71
(c) Trade Receivables - credit impaired 285.01 399.74
Less : Allowances for credit Losses (285.01) (399.74)
Total 1,745.47 1,745.71

Note:
13.1. The average credit period on sale is 30 days.

13.2. Ageing of receivables.

As at 31 March,

Particulars As at 31 March,
2019 2018

> Within the credit period 458.88 952,02
> 1-30 days past due 252.49 64.77
> 31-60 days past due 30.70 13.21
> 61-90 days past due 34.99 -
> More than 90 days past due 1,253.42 1,115.45

Total 2,030.48 2,145.45

13.3. Movement of Impairment for doubtful receivables

As at 31 March,

Particulars As at 31 March,
2019 2018
Balance at beginning of the year (399.74) (336.82)
Add: Provision made during the year (27.00) (6.12)
Less: Provision reversed during the year 141.73 -
Add: Provision for Credit risk - (56.80)
Balance at end of the year (285.01) (399.74)




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 14 : Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
(a) Cash on hand 0.20 12.75
(b) Balances with banks
(1) In current accounts 125.33 232.55
Total 125.53 245.30
Note 15_: Other Financial Asset (Current}
Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
{a) Security Deposits
- Unsecured and considered good 328.46 324,52
Total 328.46 324.52
Note 16 : Qther Current Assets
Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
(a) Prepaid Expenses 30.18 39.96
(b) Unbilled Revenue - 134.60
(c) Advances for Expenses 21.44 48.97
(d) Others 4.21 32.74
Total 55.83 256.27
Note 17: Assets Held for Sale
Particulars " As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
(a) Assets classified as held for sale 284.78
Less: disposed during the year (106.37) -
Total 178.41 -




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

{ All amounts are in Indien Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 18 ; Share Capltal

Particulars As at 31 March, 2019 Asat 31 March, 2018
Number of Shares Amount Rs. Number of Shares Amount Rs,
[a) Authorlsed
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 7,50,00,600 7,500,00 7,50,00,000 . 7,500.00
(b} Issued
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 7,17,09,285 7,170.593 7,17,09,285 - 7,170.93
{c) Subscribed and fully pald up
Equity sltares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 7,17,09,285 7.170.93 7.17,09,285 7,170.93
Total 7,17,09,285 7,170.93 7,17,09.285 7,170,93
Notes:
(i) Recanclilation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period;
Particulars Openlng Balance Fresh issuc Closing Balance
Equity shares with voting rights
Ycar ended 31 March, 2019
- Number of shares 7,17,00,285 - 7,17,09,285
- Amount (Rs)) 7,170.93 - 717093
Year ended 31 March, 2018
- Number of shares 7,17,09,285 - 7.17,09,285
- Amount{Rs.) 7,170.93 - 7,170.93
{1) Terms and Rights attached to equity shares
i. The company has enly enc class of equlty shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each shareholder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share.
il. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential ameunts, in propertion to shareholding. However, no such prelerential amount exists as
an the balance sheet date,
(iif) Details of shares held by the holding compauy
Particulars Equlty shares with
voting rights
Number of Shares
As at 31 March, 2019
Orient Green Power Company Limited 7,17,09,285
As at 31 March, 2018
Orient Green Powcer Company Limited 7,17,09,285
(iv) Details of shares held by each sharelolder hiolding more than 5% shares:
Class of shares / Name of sharcholder As at 31 March, 2019 Asat 31 March, 2018
Number of shares held] % holding in that Number of shares held | % holding in that class of
class of shares shares
Equity shares with voting rights
Orient Green Power Comnpany Ltd, Holding Ce & its Nom[nces 7,17,09,285 100% 7,17,09,285 100%

{¥) Aggregate number and class of shares-allotted as fully paid up Bonus shares (er) issued for consideration otherthan cash (or) shares bought back
for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance sheet date - Nil

(vi} Shares reserved for issue under options and options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment,including the terms
and amounts -Nil




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs uniess otherwise stated)
Note 19 : Other Equity
Particulars As at 31 March, 2019 As at 31 March, 2018
Reserves and Surplus
(a) Capital Reserve 498.19 1,272.22
(b} Securities premium account 10,344.97 10,344.97
{C) Retained earnings (7,421.44) (6,464.57)
Other Compreliensive Income
(d) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 19.13 5.52
Total 3,440.85 5,158.14
15.1 Movement in the Reserves for the year has been presented under
Particulars As at 31 March, 2019 As at 31 March, 2018
(a) Capital Reserve
Opening balance 1,272,22 1,374.96
Add : Remeasurement of Fair Value of Loan - -
Less : Utilised during the year 774,03 102,74
Closing balance 198.19 1,272.22
(b) Securities premium account
Opening balance 10,344.97 10,344.97
Add : Premium on securities issued during the year - -
Less : Utilised during the year - -
Closing balance 10,344.97 10,344,97
{c) Retained earnings
Cpening balance (6,464.57) (6,714.64)
Add: {Loss) for the year (956.87) 250.07
Less: Transfer to Reserves - .
Closing balance (7,421.44) (6,464.57)
(d) Other Comprehensive Income Defined benefit plans
Opening balance 5.52 0.00
Add : Other comprehensive income rising from remeasurment of defined benefit 13.61 5,52
obligation
Less : Utilised during the year - -
Closing balance 19.13 5.52
Total 3,440.85 5,158.14
Note 20 ; Long-term borrowings
Particulars As at 31 March, 2019 | As at 31 March, 2018
(a) Term loans
From Banks - Secured 3,450.16 4,094.80
From Financial Institutions - Secured 5,198.38 5,772.00
(1) Loans taken from related parties
From Holding Company - Unsecured 279.87 5,853.04
From Fellow Subsidiaries - Unsecured 2,406.15 50.98
From Other Parties - Unsecured 8,831.51 2,400.00
Total 20,166.07 18,170.82
(i) The company has been generally regular in the repayment of dues and interest corresponding to the above loan. However
there have been delays in meeting the debt service obligations during the current year. The loan accounts are presently classified
as standard by the lenders.
(if) For the current maturities of long-term borrowings, refer items (a) and (b) in "Other financial liabilities (current)".
(iif) Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of the secured long-term borrowings .
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BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated}

Note 21 : Other Financial Liabilities (Non Current)

Particulars As at 31 March, 2019| Asat 31 March, 2018
Interest payable to other Related paities 523.83 1,180.56
Total 523.83 1,180.56

Note 22 : Long-termm provisions

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2019

Asat 31 March, 2018

{(a) Provision for employee benefits:

(i) Provision for compensated absences 26.70 16.74
(it} Provision for gratuity (Refnote 36 ) 29.53 24,35
Total 56.23 41.09

22 : Deferr Liabili

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2019

As at 31 March, 2018

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Difference between the depreciation as per Books of Account
and Income Tax Act, 1961

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Provision for Employee Benefits

Unabsorbed depreciation / carried forward losses

(restricted to the extent of the remaining Net Deferred Tax Liability)

3,877.28

(3,877.28)

5,756.73

(5,756.73)

Net deferred tax (liability) / asset

Note: 22,1

Since Company is incurring losses and there is absence of reasonable certainty regarding availability of future taxable income
against which such deferred tax assets can be realised, Deferred tax has not been recognised in these financial statements.

Note 23 :Berrowings (Short term)

Particulars

As at 31 Maurch, 2019

Asat 31 March, 2018

(a) Borrowings
(i) Banks - Sccured

68.00

Total

68.00

Note 24: Trade payables

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2019

As at 31 March, 2018

Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(Refer Note given below )

Total ontstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

908.30

753.66

Total

908.30

753.66

Note: 24.1

As at 31 March, 2019 and 31 March, 2018, based on and to the extent of information available with the Company regarding the
registration of suppliers as Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

there are no amounts outstanding in respect of these suppliers.




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
L(AH amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 25: Other Financial Liabilities [Current)

Particulars As at 31 March, 2019| As at 31 March, 2018
(a) Current maturities of long-term debt 1,541.02 1,382.78
(b) Interest accrued and due on Long term borrowings 165.50 178.95
{c) Other payables
(i} Interest accrued on Short term borrowings 0.75 6.48
(ii) Others 1.37 -
Total 1,708.64 1,568.21

Note 26: Provision hovt ter'm

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2019

As at 31 March, 2018

{(a) Provision for employee bencfits:

(i) Provision for compensated absences 4.29 3.06
(ii) Provision for gratuity (ref note 36) 1.99 2.63
Tolal 6.28 5.69
Note 27: Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As at 31 March, 2019 As at 31 March, 2018
(@) Statutory remittances 120.64 122.96
(b) Provision for taxation 27.95
Total 120.64 150.91
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BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consolldated Financial Statements for tie year ended 31 March, 2019

{ Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

There have been delays in payment of principal and Interest cutstanding as on 31st March 2019 as glven below:

Particulars Period of default 2018-19 Perlod of default 2017-18
From To From Ta
Term Loan from Banks )
Principal Outstanding Mar-19 Mar-19 125,00 |Dec-17 Mar-18 197.27
Interest Outstanding Jan-19 Mar-19 128.45% |Dec-17 Mar-18 6.47
Overdue Balance ' 253.45 203.74
Term Loan from Finauncial Institutlons
Principal Outstanding Mar-19 Mar-19 104.00
Interest Outstanding Dee-18 Mar-19 37.04 -
Overdue Balance 141.04 -

Subsequent to the Balance Sheet date, out of the above stated outstanding the company paid Rs. 10.54 Lakhs towards princlpal and Rs. 37.04 Lakhs towards
Interest




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Maich, 2019

{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Note 28 : Revenue from operations

. Year ended 31 March,| Year ended March 31,

Pﬂl'tlculalls 2019 2018
(a) Sale of power 4,977.41 6,240.00
Total 4,977.41 6,240.00

28 (a) Disaggregation of revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in time in the

following major product lines and geographical regions
2018-2019

. External Customers Related parties
Particulars

Revenue firomn sale of Power
- India 4,977.41 -
- Others - -
Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 497741 -
Timing of Revenue Recognition
- Ata point in Time 4,977.41
- Over period of Time -
Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 4,977.41 -

Note 29 : Fair value gain on modification ofloan

Particalar Year ended 31 March, Year ended March 31,
riewars 2019 2018
Fair value gain on loan from SVL Limited 182.61 -
Total 182.61

Note 30 : Other Income

Particulars Year ended 31 March,| Year ended March 31,

2019 2018

(a) Interest income
(i) Bank Deposits at amortised Cost 9.03 1.04
(ii) Interest Others 798.00 1,017.68
(b) Other non-operating income (net of expenses
directly attributable to such income)
(i) sale of scrap 13.91 10.93
(i) Miscellaneous [icome 161.48 -
(iii) Liabilities no longer required written back 91.92 342.05
Total 1,074.34 1,371.70

Note 31 : Employee benelits expense

Particulars Year ended 31 March,| Year ended March 31,

articuia 2019 2018

{a) Salaries and wages 251.86 217.64

(b) Contributions to provident fund 18.35 16.79

(c) Gratuity expense 8.60 7.57

(d) Staff welfare expenses 28.51 33.93
Total 307.32 275.93




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs uniess otherwise stated)

Note 32 : Finance Cost

Particul Year ended 31 March,| Year ended March 31,
articulars 2019 2018
(a) Interest expense o

(i) Term Loans 1,452.37 1,641.51

(i) Short term borrowings 0.75 -
(iii) Group Companies 1,597.66 8906.49
(b) Other borrowing costs 12.28 30.00
Total 3,063.06 2,568.00

Note 33 : Other expenses

Particulars

Year ended 31 March,

Year ended March 31,

2019 2018
(a) Consumption of stores and spare parts 30992 335.87
(b) Power and fuel 7.53 2.78
(c) Rent 6.46 1.97
(d} Repairs and maintenance - Buildings
- Machinery 664.07 680.37
- Others 3.19 5.30
(e} Insurance 36.58 38.84
(f) Rates and taxes 53.95 29,66
(g) Commmunication 5.45 3.86
(h) Travelling and conveyance 49.33 418.36
(1} Printing and stationery 6.45 5.95
(i) Sales commission 3.03 12.03
{k} Hire Charges 15.85 17.50
() Sitting Fees 0.10 -
(m) Business promotion 1.11 0.91
(n) Legal and professional 36.87 34.89
{o) Payments to auditors (Ref.Note below) 6.55 5.55
(p) Doubtful trade receivables 130.44 64.17
() Netloss on foreign currency transactions and translation 0.14 -0.06
(r) Electricity Charges 0.59 0.76
(s) Bank charges 0.18 0.22
(t) Watch and Ward 85.70 86.09
(4] Impariment Loss on Assets 21.42 -
{v) Miscellaneous expenses 16.61 18.06
Tatal 1,465.52 1,393.08

Note 33 .1: Payments to the Auditors Comnprises:

Particulars

Year ended 31 March,
2019

2018

Year ended March 31,

As Statutory Auditors

6.55

5.55

Total

6.55

5.55
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BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March, 2019

{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 34 : Segment Reporting

The primary reporting of the Company has been made on the basis of Business Segments. The Company has a single business

segment as defined in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on Segment Reporting, namely Generation of Power through

Renewable Sources. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in these financial statements relate to this primary business segment.

Note 34.1 : Information abont major Customers

During FY 2018-19 and 2017-18 there are 6 Number of customers respectively who contributed 10% or more to the company's
revenue.

Note 35 : Contingent liability and Commitments

Note

Particulars

Asat
31 March, 2019

Asat
31 March, 2018

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent liabilities (net of provisions)

(a) Service Tax Demands against which the Company has gone on Appeal

{(b) Income tax dept has reopened the assessment for the year 2009-10 on the
pretext that purchase of windmills has happenned during the asst year 2010-11.
Consequently depreciation to the extent of Rs.1,493.64 Lakhs has Dbeen
disallowed and tax demand for Rs 96.39 lakhs has been raised. The co has
disputed the above demands in the higher forums.

(c) Corporate Guarantees provided for subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries
{d) Conunitments

1,46543
96.39

5,000.00

NIL

1,401.36
96.39

5,000.00
NIL




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 3G : Employee benefits expense

(1) Defined Contribution Plan
Company’s (employer's) contributions to Defined contribution plans, recognised as expenses in the Statement of profit and loss are;

e“l"doer(:he }'eatz;l For the year ended
Particulars

March 2019 31 March 2018
Provident Fund T s
o 4.56 4.H0
EDLI Fund 35 40

(11} Defined Benefit Plans:

These plans typically expose the

The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is calcutated wsing a discount rate which is determired by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period en government bonds. When there is a deep market for
such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for these plans,
investments are made in government securities, debt instruments, Short term debt instruments, Equity instruments
and Asset Backed, Trust Structured securities as per natification of Ministry of Finance,

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offsct by an increase

Investment risk

Interest risk . .
in the return on the plan’s investments,

The present value of the defined benefit plan liahility is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of|

plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will

Longevity risk
increase the plan's liability.
The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

Salary risk

participants. As such, an itcrease in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Apart [rom grawity, no other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees.
[n respect of the above plans, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at
31 March 2017 by a member firm of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined banefit obligation, and the related current service cost

and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method

(2) Amountrecognised in the statement of profit & loss in respect of the defined Lenefit plan are as follows :

Particnlars For the year ended Fu;ltlr:‘e ye;lrzeonlied
31 March 2019 1 arch

Ameounts recognised fn statement of Profit & Loss in respect of these
deflined benefit plans are as follows:
Service Cost

- Current Service Cost : 6.50 5.60
Net interest expense 2.04 1.97
Componeats of defined benelit costs recognised in prolit or loss (A) .60 7.57
Remeasurement on the net defined henefit liability :
Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net interest expense)
Actuarial loss arising from demographic assumption changes 2.91 0.81
Actuarial lass arising from changes in finaneial assumptions (8.49) (1.71)
Acluarial (gains) arising lorm experience adjustments {10.39) {1.63)
Components of defined benefit cosls recogniscd in ather comprehensive {15.97) {5.53)
Total (7.37) 2.04

(i) The current service cost and interest expense for the year are included in the "Employee Benefit Expenses” line item in the statement of profit & toss under

contribution to provident and ether funds.
(ii] The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

(b)) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's abligation in respect of defined benefit plan is as follows :

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

I. Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation
[air value of plan assets 31.52 26,97
Surplus/(Deficit) (31.52) (2697}
Current portion of the above 4.54 (0.13)
Non current portion of the above {20.98) 27.10




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{ All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(¢) Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

Particul Forthe year ended | For the year ended
articulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Change in the obligation during the year

Present value of delined henefit obligation at the beginning of the year 26,98 27.10
Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss Account
- Current Service Cost 6.56 5.60

- Past Service Cost

- Interest Expense {Income) 2.04 1.96
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement gains / (losses)
« Actuarial Gain (Loss) arising from:
i. Demographic Assumptions 291 0.80
i. Financial Assuinptions (849) (1.70)
ii. Experience Adjustiments (10.39) (4.63)
Benefit payments 1191 (2.16)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 31.52 26.90

(d) The following Table gives the Funded Status and the amount recongnised in the Balance Sheet for the Plan.

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
[nfermation Required Under Ind AS 19
1. Projected benefit Obligation 31.52 26.98
2.Accumulated Benelits Obligation 17.30 17.37
3.Five Year Payowuts (Para 147 C)
2020 213
2021 ) 1.51
2022 1.47
2023 1.47
2024 2.25
Next 5 Years Payouts (6-10 Yrs) 10,00
7517

Payout above Ten Years
Vested henefit Obligation as on Para 137 (b} as on 31-Mar-2019 27.46

{e) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as follows :

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discount rate 7.67% 7.20%
Expected rate of salary increase 6% 4%
Withdrawal Rate 6% 15%
Mortality 1ALM 2006-0B{U11) 1ALM 2006-08(U1t)

* Based on [ndia's standard mortality table with modification to reflect the expected changes in mortality fothers

(f) Significant actuarial asswmptions for the determination of defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase rate and mortality. The sensitivity
analysis helow have heen deiermined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period while

holding all other assumptions constant:

Sensitivity Analysis Discount rate Salary Growtly/ Increment rate Attrition/ Wilthdrawal rate
2018-19 2017-18 2013-19 2017-10 2010-19 2017-18
Difference due to increase in rate by
0.28 1.33
1% (3.23) (13.48) 3.79 6.85 (133}
Dilierence due to decrease in rate by
104 3.85 15.33 {3.23) {6.23)] (0.33) (0.20)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benelit obligations as it is unlikely that the change in
assuwinptions would cecur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furtherimore , in presenting the above sensitivity analysis the present value of defined benefit abligation has been calcutated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reperting period which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There is no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis lrom the prior years.

Experience Adjushnents For the year ended | For the year ended Vi .
31March2019 | 31March2018 o V7N
Delined Benefit Obligation 31.52 26.98 ) Ve ;
Surplus/{Deficit) . (31.52) (26.98} ; ’;
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities [(Gain}/Loss] (10.39) (4.63) Lo
Y I
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BIARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{ All amounts are in indian fupees in Lakhs unless othenvise stated)

38 (a). Financial Instruments

(1) Capital Management
The Company manages its capital ko ensure that it is able to contipue as going concern while maximising the return to the stakeholders through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Cempany consists of Debt and total equity. The Cempany is not subject to any,
externally imposed capltal requirement In order to maintain the capital sivucture in consistent with others in the industry , the Company monltors capital

on the basis of the lollowing gearing ratio,

Gearlng Ralio:
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March, 31 March,
2019 2018
Debt (Refer Notes 20,23 & 25) 20,775.0% 19,553.60
Cash and Dank Balance {Refer Note {125.53) (245.30)
14)
Net Debt 21,649.56 19,308.30
Tatal Equity 10,611.70 12,329.07
Less): Goodwill on Consolidation B77.71 a77.71
(refer note - 6)
Net Debit 9,734.07 11,451.36
Net Debt to equily ratio 222% 169%
(I} Categorles of FInanclal Instruments
() Financial Asscts
Asat As at
Parilculars 31 March, 31 March,
2019 2018
Measured at amortised cost
- Investments in equity instruments 53.81 53.03
- Loans 14,674.98 11,070.44
Other Financial Assets ( Non Current) 317776 1,381.21
Measured at amiorlised cost
- Trade receivables 1,74547 1,745.71
- Cash and Bank balance 125,53 245.30
- Other linancial assets 32046 324.52
(1) Financtal Liabillties ;
As at Asat
31 March, 31 March,
Particulars 2019 2018
Measured at anortised cost
+ Borrowings 21,775.09 19,553.60
- Trade payables 908.30 753.66
- Other financial liabilities 691.40 2,546.55
(111) Details of nancial assels pledged as collateral
Carrying amount of financial assets as at 31 March, 2019 and 31 March, 2018 that the company has provided as a collateral for obtaining borrowing and other
facilities from the bankers are as fallowys:
Asat Asat
Parliculars 31 March, 31 March,
2019 20180
Frade receivable 1,74547 1,745.71

(111) Flnancial risk management Framework

The Company manages financial risk relating te the operations through internal risk reperts which analyse exposure by degree and magnitude al risk. These
risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company seeks to minimises the
effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge the risk exposures, The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company's
policies approved by the Audit Committee which provides written principles on loreign exchange risk, interest rate risk , credit risk, the use of financial
derivatives and non derivative financial instruments and the investment in excess of liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by
the management on a continuous basis,

The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments including derivative financial instruments for speculative purpose.

(iV) Market risk
The Company's activities exposes it primarily to the financial risk of change in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company enters into a

derivative instruments to manage its exposure to loreign currency risk and interest rate risk including forward foreign exchange contracts to the hedge the

exchange rate risk arising on account of External Currency Barrowings.




BITARATH WIND FARM LIMITED
Nuotes to the consolidated financial statenients for the year ended March 31, 2019
{ All emounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs uniess otherwise stated)

(V) Liquidity risk management :

Ultimate responsibility fer liguidity risk management rests with the board of directers, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
frameworX for the management of the Company’s short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management requircineats. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously menitering forecast and actual cash Rows,
and by matching the maturity profiles of linancial assets and liabilities,

Llquidity and Interest Risk Tablcs :

The follewing tables detail the Company's remaining contractyal maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilitics with agreed repayinent periods, The
information ircluded In the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the

Company can be required to pay. The tables include bath interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted
average Lessthan 1 1-3 mantiis 3 monthstol 1ta5 years S years and TOTAL
Parllculars maorth year above
Interest rate
% INR INR INR INR INR INR

31 March, 2019

Non-interest bearing ~ * NA 591.13 537 183.16 75.64 - 909.30
Fixed Interest Rate Dorrowings

-From Danks & Financial Institutions 12.00% 410,21 277.15 1,087.92 0,124.96 523.57 10,423.81
-From Holding Company 031% - - - 279.87 - 27947
-From Related Parties 2.66% - - - 2,406.17 - 2406.17
-Fram Others 11.B1% - - - 9,355.32 - 9,355.32
Total 1,001.34 335,52 1,271.00 20,241.96 523.57 23,373.47
31 March, 2018

Non-interest bearing NA 623.25 40,78 70,79 168.80 - 75362
Fixed Interest Rate Borrowings

-From Uanks & Financtal 11.72% 197.28 200.89 984.60 6,040.36 4,011.88 11,435,01
-From Holding Company 6.48% - - - 5,853.04 - 5,853.04
-From Related Parties 0.06% - - - 50.98 - 50.96
-From Others 4.53% - - - 3,580.56 - 3580.56
Tatal 820.53 241.67 1,055.39 15,543.74 4,011.00 21,673.21

The [ellowing table detalls the Company’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The Infermation included in the table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounied contraclual maturitics of the financial assets including Interest that will be earncd on those assets. The inclusion of information on
non-derivative inancial asseks Is necessary in order to understand the Company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and

liability basis,

) Less than 1 1-3 nwonths 3 months to 1105 years 5 years and TOTAL
Particulars month 1 year above
INR INR INR INR INR INR

31 March 2019

Interest bearing(10.5%) £4674.98 - 14,674.98
Non interest bearing 1,077.55 6477 13.42 1,475.29 - 2,631.03
Total 1,077.55 64.77 13.42 16,150.27 - 17,306.01
31 Marci 2018

Interest bearing (10.5%) 1107044 - 11070.44
Non-interest bearing 932.44 14895 27232 231495 - 3994.66
Tolal 932,44 148.95 27232 | 1341539 R 15,069.10

Note 38 (1] - Falr Value Measurement
(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value :

The Company considers thar the carrying amnount of financial asset and financial liabilities recegnised in the financial statements approximate the fair values,




BHARATH WIND FARM LIMITED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

39 |Earnings Per Share

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018

Earnings per share

Profit / {Loss) for the year - Rupees (943.28) 326.27
Weighted average number of equity shares -Lakhs 7,17,09,285 7,17,09,285
Par value per share - Rupees 10.00 10.00
Earnings per share - Basic - Rupees {1.32) 0.45
Earnings per share - Diluted - Rupees (1.32) 0.45

40 | Events after the Reporting period - Nil

41 [The figures for the corresponding previous year have beenre

comparable,

42
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grouped/ reclassified whenever necessary, to make them

The Board of Directors of the Company has reviewed the realisable value of all the current assets and has confirmed that the
value of such assets in the ordinary cowrse of business will not be less than the value at which these are recognized in the
financial statements. In addition, the Board has also confirmed the cariying value of the non-current assets including long-term
investments in the financial statements. The Board, duly taking into account all the relevant disclosures made, has approved
these financial statements in its meeting held on 26th April, 2019,

K.V, Kasturi

Dircctor
DIN: 00892075

o

P. Srinivasan
Company Secretary




